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Carmel Curley

From: Carmel Curley
Sent: Thursday 3 April 2025 12:10
To: info@jagorman.ie
Subject: DED 839 - James Walsh 
Attachments: DED 839 - Notification of Decision.pdf

Good afternoon,  
 
Please find attached Notification of Decision for DED Application 839 for James Walsh.  
 
Regards,  
 
Carmel  
 
Carmel Curley, Staff Officer, 
Planning Department, Roscommon County Council,  
Aras an Chontae, Roscommon, Co. Roscommon, F42 VR98 
: (090) 6637100 
: planning@roscommoncoco.ie  | 🌐 www.roscommoncoco.ie 
MAP LOCATION  

 

 
 





















James Walsh, 

 

 

 

 

Date: 

Reference: 

Comhairle Contae 
Ros Comaln 
Roscommon 
County Council 

12th March, 2025 

DED839 

Re: Application for a Declaration under Section 5 of the Planning & Development Act 2000 

(as amended), regarding Exempted Development. 

Development: WHEREAS a question has arisen as to whether the conversion of an existing derelict 

Public House to ground floor apartment with alterations to existing 1st floor apartments 

at The Rooster Bar, Church Street, Roscommon, Co. Roscommon, is or is not 

development and is or is not exempted development . 
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

A Chara, 

Further to your application received on the 6th February, 2025 and in order for the Planning Authority to 

determine as to whether the conversion of an existing derelict Public House to ground floor apartment with 

alterations to existing 1st floor apartments at the above address is or is not development and is or is not exempted 

development, you are requested to submit the following further information: 

1. Clarify the period of time for which the first floor of the building subject of this Section S Declaration

request has been vacant.

2. Clarify where parking will be provided for the residents of the proposed 2no. units

Consideration of your application is being deferred pending compliance with this request for further information. 

When replying please quote Planning Reference Number OED 839 

Note: Replies to this communication must be by way of original documents. 

Mise le meas, 

Alan O'Connell, 

Senior Executive Planner, 

Planning. 

cc agent via email: J.A. Gorman Consulting Engineers Ltd 

info@jagorman.ie 

Aras an Chontae, R)�,common. F4.,_ VR98 

T 090 6637100 F 090 6625599 E customerservice@roscommoncoco.ie 

w roscommon.ie 1H RoscommonCountyCouncil La@roscommoncoco 

€� Oifig Fiontair Aitiuil 
Local Enterprise Office 
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Carmel Curley

From: Carmel Curley
Sent: Wednesday 12 March 2025 16:23
To: info@jagorman.ie
Subject: DED839 - James Walsh 
Attachments: DED839 - FI Request Letter.pdf

A Chara,  
 
Please find attached Request for Further Information for DED Application 839 submitted for James Walsh. Please 
note that a hard copy will be issued to the applicant.  
 
Regards,  
 
Carmel  
 
Carmel Curley, Assistant Staff Officer, 
Planning Department, Roscommon County Council,  
Aras an Chontae, Roscommon, Co. Roscommon, F42 VR98 
: (090) 6637100 
: planning@roscommoncoco.ie  | 🌐 www.roscommoncoco.ie 
MAP LOCATION  

 

 
 



Planner's Report on application under 

Section 5 of the Planning and Development Act 2000 (as amended) 

Reference Number: 

Re: 

Name of Applicant: 

Location of Development: 

Site Visit: 

OED 839 

Permission to convert an existing derelict public house to ground 

floor apartment with alterations to existing 151 floor apartments 

under the Planning and Development Act (Exempted 

Development) Regulations 2018 

James Walsh 

The Rooster Bar, Church Street, Roscommon, Co. Roscommon 

06/03/2025 

WHEREAS a question has arisen as to whether the following works to convert an existing derelict 

public house to ground floor apartment with alterations to existing 1'1 floor apartments at the above 

address is or is not development and is or is not exempted development. 

I have considered this question, and I have had regard particularly to -

(a) Sections 2, 3, 4 and 5 of the Planning and Development Act, 2000, as amended

(b) Articles 6, 9 and 10 of the Planning and Development Regulations, 2001, as amended

(c) The record forwarded to Roscommon County Council in accordance with subsection (6)(c) of

Section 5 of the Planning and Development Acts 2000 as amended.

(d) The planning history of the site

Site Location & Development Description 

The site is located on Church Street, Roscommon, Co. Roscommon. The proposed development is 

located in the Rooster bar which has a vacant public house on the ground floor and an apartment on 

the first floor. The proposed development consists of converting the downstairs public house into an 

apartment and alterations to the first floor apartment. 

Archaeological and Cultural Heritage 

The site is located within the Roscommon Architectural Conservation Area and the archaeological 

zone of notification, R184453. 

Appropriate Assessment 

The closest European site to the proposed development is Lough Ree SAC (Site Code: 000440) which 

is located circa 3.9km to the east of the subject site. 

Having regard to the separation distance between the site and the closest Natura 2000 site and the 

nature of the proposal, there is no real likelihood of significant effects on the conservation objectives 



of these or other European sites arising from the proposed development. The need for further 

Appropriate Assessment can, therefore, be excluded. 

Planning History 

As per the Roscommon County Council's Planning Registry, no recent planning history has been traced 

to the proposed site. 

PP 4670: Occurred on 7th January 2025 where the applicant was advised to consider Article 10(6) of 

the Planning and Development Regulations 2001 (as amended), and if any material changes to occur 

to the exterior of the building would de-exempt the proposed change of use. 

Relevant statutory provisions 

Planning and Development Acts 2000 (as amended} 

Section 2. -(1) 

"works" includes any act or operation of construction, excavation, demolition, extension, 

alteration, repair or renewal and, in relation to a protected structure or proposed protected 

structure, includes any act or operation involving the application or removal of plaster, paint, 

wallpaper, tiles or other material to or from the surfaces of the interior or exterior of a 

structure. 

Section 3. -(1) 

In this Act, "development" means, except where the context otherwise requires, the carrying out of 

any works on, in, over or under land or the making of any material change in the use of any structures 

or other land. 

Section 4(1) of the Act defines certain types of development as being 'exempted development'. Of 

potential relevance is section 4(1)(h) which provides as follows: 

development consisting of the carrying out of works for the maintenance, improvement or other 

alteration of any structure, being works which affect only the interior of the structure or which do not 

materially affect the external appearance of the structure so as to render the appearance inconsistent 

with the character of the structure or of neighbouring structures; 

Section 4 (2) of the Planning and Development Act provides that the Minister, by regulations, provide 

for any class of development to be exempted development. The principal regulations made under this 

provision are the Planning and Development Regulations. 



Planning and Development Regulations, 2001 as amended 

Article 6 (1) 

Subject to article 9, development of a class specified in column 1 of Part 3 of Schedule 2 shall be 

exempted development for the purposes of the Act, provided that such development complies with 

the conditions and limitations specified in column 2 of the said Part 3 opposite the mention of that 

class in the said column 1. 

Article 9 (1) applies; 

Development to which article 6 relates shall not be exempted development for the purposes of the 

Act 

viiB) comprise development in relation to which a planning authority or an Bord Pleanala is the 

competent authority in relation to appropriate assessment and the development would require an 

appropriate assessment because it would be likely to have a significant effect on the integrity of a 

European site, 

Article 10 (6} 

(a) In this sub-article-

"relevant period" means the period from the making of these Regulations until 31 

December 2021. 

(b) This sub-article relates to a proposed development, during the relevant period, that consists of

a change of use to residential use from Class 1, 2, 3 or 6 of Part 4 to Schedule 1. 

(c) Notwithstanding sub-article (1), where in respect of a proposed development referred to in 

paragraph (b)-

(i) the structure concerned was completed prior to the making of the Planning and

Development (Amendment) (No. 2) Regulations 2018, 

(ii) the structure concerned has at some time been used for the purpose of its current use

class, being Class 1, 2, 3 or 6, and 

(iii) the structure concerned, or so much of it that is the subject of the proposed

development, has been vacant for a period of 2 years or more immediately prior to the

commencement of the proposed development, then the proposed development for

residential use, and any related works, shall be exempted development for the purposes of

the Act, subject to the conditions and limitations set out in paragraph (d).

(d) (i) The development is commenced and completed during the relevant period.

(ii) Subject to sub-paragraph (iii), any related works, including works as may be required to 

comply with sub-paragraph (vii), shall affect only the interior of the structure and shall not

materially affect the external appearance of the structure so as to render its appearance

inconsistent with the character of the structure or of neighbouring structures.

(iii) Any related works for the alteration of existing ground floor shop fronts shall be

consistent with the fenestration details and architectural and streetscape character of the 

remainder of the structure or of neighbouring structures. 



(iv) No development shall consist of or comprise the carrying out of works to the ground

floor area of any structure which conflicts with any objective of the relevant local authority

development plan or local area plan, pursuant to the Part 1 of the First Schedule to the Act,

for such to remain in retail use, with the exception of any works the purpose of which is to

solely provide on street access to the upper floors of the structure concerned.

(v) No development shalt consist of or comprise the carrying out of works which exceeds

the provision of more than 9 residential units in any structure.

(vi) Dwelling floor areas and storage spaces shall comply with the minimum floor area

requirements and minimum storage space requirements of the "Sustainable Urban

Housing: Design Standards for New Apartments - Guidelines for Planning Authorities"

issued under section 28 of the Act or any subsequent updated or replacement guidelines.

(vii) Rooms for use, or intended for use, as habitable rooms shall have adequate natural

lighting.

(viii) No development shall consist of or comprise the carrying out of works to a protected

structure, as defined in section 2 of the Act, save where the relevant planning authority has

issued a declaration under section 57 of the Act to the effect that the proposed works would

not materially affect the character of the structure or any element, referred to in section

57(1)(b) of the Act, of the structure.

(ix) No development shall contravene a condition attached to a permission under the Act

or be inconsistent with any use specified or included in such a permission.

(x) No development shall relate to any structure in any of the following areas:

(I) an area to which a special amenity area order relates;

(11) an area of special planning control;

(Ill) within the relevant perimeter distance area, as set out in Table 2 of Schedule 8,

of any type of establishment to which the Major Accident Regulations apply.

(xi) No development shall relate to matters in respect of which any of the restrictions set

out in subparagraph (iv), (vii), (viiA), (viiB), (viiC), (viii) or (ix) of article 9(1)(a), or paragraph

(c) or (d) of article (9)(1), would apply.

(xii) No development shall consist of or comprise the carrying out of works for the provision

of an onsite wastewater treatment and disposal system to which the code of practice made

by the Environmental Protection Agency pursuant to section 76 of the Environmental

Protection Agency Act 1992 relates and entitled Code of Practice - Wastewater Treatment

and Disposal Systems Serving Single Houses together with any amendment to that Code or 

any replacement for it.

(e) (i) Where a person proposes to undertake development to which sub-paragraph (b) relates,

then he or she shall accordingly notify the planning authority in whose functional area that

the change of use concerned will occur in writing at least 2 weeks prior to the commencement

of the proposed change of use and any related works.

(ii) Details of each notification under subparagraph (i), which shall include information on­

(1) the location of the structure, and 

(II) the number of residential units involved, including the unit sizes and number of

bedrooms in each unit,



shalt be entered in a record by the planning authority maintained for this purpose and 

the record shall be available for inspection at the offices of the planning authority 

during office hours and on the planning authority's website. 
(iii) During the years 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022, each planning authority shall provide
information to the Minister on the number of notifications received by it under this paragraph

during the preceding calendar year, including details of the information so received for the
purposes of subparagraph (ii).

Initial Planning Assessment 

In accordance with the Planning and Development Act, 2000, as amended Section 3. (1) development 

is defined as the following: "In this Act, "development" means, except where the context otherwise 
requires, the carrying out of any works on, in, over or under land or the making of any material change 

in the use of any structures or other land". The proposed development is considered to be the carrying 
out of works. Works are defined in the Act as; "works" includes any act or operation of construction, 
excavation, demolition, extension, alteration, repair or renewal and, in relation to a protected 

structure .... ". It is considered that said works constitute development, as defined in Section 3 of the 
said Act. 

The proposal includes making interior alterations to derelict public house to convert it to a ground 

floor apartment and alterations to the existing first floor apartment. These works have been 
considered in the context of Section 4 (l)(h) of the Act, which consists of the carrying out of works for 

the maintenance, improvement or other alteration of any structure, being works which affect only the 

interior of the structure or which do not materially affect the external appearance of the structure so 
as to render the appearance inconsistent with the character of the structure or of neighbouring 

structures. From review of the existing the existing vs the proposed drawings provided there appears 

to be no alterations proposed to the existing front elevation. 

This Section 5 application relates to a building which appeared to have last been used as a pub and 
residential. The applicant is proposing to convert this building into 2 separate residential units, the 

ground floor public house is proposed to be converted into a 1 bedroom apartment and the first floor 

apartment will remain as a 2 bedroom apartment. It would appear from a site inspection on the 6th 

March 2025 that the building is not in use/vacant however it is not clear from the application how 

long it has been vacant for. Therefore clarification to determine how long the first floor has been 

vacant in order to conclusively determine if the proposed change of use falls within the parameters as 
set out in Article 10 (6). 

The proposal of the charge of use to form 2no. residential units raises concerns in relation to 
endangering pubtic safety by reason of traffic hazard or obstruction of road users as the is no provision 

or mention of the car parking to be provided for the residents. Therefore clarification is required for 

the proposed parking spaces for this development. 



Recommendation 

Request the following further information 

1. Clarify the period of time for which the first floor of the building subject of this Section 5

Declaration request has been vacant.

2. Clarify where parking will be provided for the residents of the proposed 2no. units.

Signed: Date: 10th March 2025 

Graduate Planner 

Signed: Date: 11th March 2025 

Senior Executive Planner 
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